
 1

MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY 

 
Commissioners’ Meeting 
June 24, 2021 

 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY  
110 CONTINENTAL DRIVE BUDD LAKE, NJ 07828 

   
Chairman Rattner called the meeting to order at 7:30 PM.  Following the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag, announcement was 
made that adequate notice of this meeting had been provided for as defined by the “Open Public Meetings Act”. 

 
Members Present:  Michael Grogan, Michael Pucilowski, Steven Rattner, Thomas Romano, Richard Schindelar, 

Joseph Schwab, Elmer Still, Jack Sylvester  
 
Members Absent:    James Benson, Andrew Cangiano, Brian McNeilly, Melanie Michetti  
 
Others Present:  Tom Carroll ‐ QPA, Pat Dwyer ‐ Esq., James Schilling ‐ MSA Director, Jilliam Martucci ‐ 

Administrative, Jim Wancho ‐ PE 
 
Attendance Roll Call: 

Mr. Benson  Absent  Chairman Rattner  Present  
Mr. Cangiano  Absent  Mr. Romano  Present  
Mr. Grogan  Present  Mr. Schindelar  Present  
Mr. McNeilly  Absent  Mr. Schwab   Present 
Mrs. Michetti  Absent  Mr. Still  Present 
Mr. Pucilowski  Present  Mr. Sylvester  Present 

 

 



 2

Chairman Rattner opened and closed the meeting to the public. 
 
The “Regular” meeting minutes of April 22, 2021 accepted on a motion offered by Mr. Still, seconded by Mr. Schwab 
Roll Call Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Absent  Chairman Rattner  Yes  
Mr. Cangiano  Absent  Mr. Romano  Yes 
Mr. Grogan  Abstain  Mr. Schindelar  Abstain 
Mr. McNeilly  Absent  Mr. Schwab  Yes 
Mrs. Michetti  Absent  Mr. Still  Yes 
Mr. Pucilowski  Yes  Mr. Sylvester  Yes 

Comments: 

 None 
 

The “Regular” meeting minutes of May 27, 2021 accepted on a motion offered by Mr. Romano, seconded by Mr. Schindelar 
Roll Call Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Absent  Chairman Rattner  Yes  
Mr. Cangiano  Absent  Mr. Romano  Yes 
Mr. Grogan  Abstain  Mr. Schindelar  Abstain 
Mr. McNeilly  Absent  Mr. Schwab  Yes 
Mrs. Michetti  Absent  Mr. Still  Yes 
Mr. Pucilowski  Yes  Mr. Sylvester  Yes 

 

 None  
 

The Financial Reports for 2020 were accepted on a motion offered by Mr. Schwab, seconded by Mr. Romano.   
Roll Call Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Absent  Chairman Rattner  Yes  
Mr. Cangiano  Absent  Mr. Romano  Yes  
Mr. Grogan  Yes  Mr. Schindelar  Yes 
Mr. McNeilly  Absent  Mr. Schwab  Yes 
Mrs. Michetti  Absent  Mr. Still  Yes 
Mr. Pucilowski  Yes  Mr. Sylvester  Yes 

 
Comments: 

 Chairman Rattner questioned the Permit Fees being over budget at 135%.   
o Mr. Schilling advised that we are done with Permit fees & renewals for this year.   
o Mr. Schilling advised he will look into this further and respond in an email.   
o Mr. Schwab stated that we would be $9000.00 over $25,000.00 budget.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 3

Financial Report – 2020 

 
 



 4

 



 5

 



 6

 



 7

 

 
 



 8

The Financial Reports for 2021 were accepted on a motion offered by Mr. Schwab, seconded by Mr. McNeilly.   
Roll Call Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Absent  Chairman Rattner  Yes  
Mr. Cangiano  Absent  Mr. Romano  Yes  
Mr. Grogan  Yes  Mr. Schindelar  Yes 
Mr. McNeilly  Absent  Mr. Schwab  Yes 
Mrs. Michetti  Absent  Mr. Still  Yes 
Mr. Pucilowski  Yes  Mr. Sylvester  Yes 

 
Comments: 

 None 
Financial Reports – 2021 

 

 



 9

 
 



 10

 
 
 
 



 11

 
 



 12



 13

The Pending Vouchers through June 17, 2021 were approved for payment on a motion offered by Mr. Romano, seconded by Mr. 
Schwab and the affirmative roll call vote of members present.  
Roll Call Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Absent  Chairman Rattner  Yes  
Mr. Cangiano  Absent  Mr. Romano  Yes  
Mr. Grogan  Yes  Mr. Schindelar  Yes 
Mr. McNeilly  Absent  Mr. Schwab  Yes 
Mrs. Michetti  Absent  Mr. Still  Yes 
Mr. Pucilowski  Yes  Mr. Sylvester  Yes 

Comments:  

   Mr. Schwab stated the Mr. Romano reviewed the vouchers this month, any questions should be directed to him.  
  

PENDING VOUCHERS  
 

 



 14

 



 15

The following correspondence for the May through June, 2021 was received and filed on a motion offered by Mr. Sylvester, 
seconded by Mr. Schindelar.  
All in Favor Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Absent  Chairman Rattner  Aye 
Mr. Cangiano  Absent  Mr. Romano  Aye 
Mr. Grogan  Aye  Mr. Schindelar  Aye 
Mr. McNeilly  Absent  Mr. Schwab  Aye 
Mrs. Michetti  Absent  Mr. Still  Aye 
Mr. Pucilowski  Aye  Mr. Sylvester  Aye 

 

 
 
Comments:  

 Correspondence A: Mr. Rattner commended the MSA Lab staff on the 2022 DEP Certification.  

 Correspondence F: Mr. Rattner stated that he doesn’t really understand what the issue is with the AEA. 
o Mr. Dwyer advised that he read it as well and wasn’t clear on it either.  
o Mr. Rattner stated he will have his staff at the County read through it and give an explanation.  
o Mr. Pucilowski stated that he believes its outside forces are trying to take hold of the assets, when Capital 

Improvements are completed, funds are provided, maintenance does not get any funding.  
o Mr. Schilling agreed and advised this was also his perspective, he also thought perhaps that privatization sector to 

lobby Legislators to convince them that the public sector doesn’t manage money & assets properly and that AEA is 
fighting back saying that they are managing just fine. 

o Mr. Rattner stated that 10 years ago there was a big push to sell Mount Olive’s water to NJ American Water for 
$6,000,000.00 in cash and that can be put into a budget, the rates were only guaranteed for 2 years after that the 
water could go anywhere.  The issue with that is public utilities applies to the entire system, you would be paying for 
other people’s upgrades. 

 Mr. Schilling further advised there is a lot of push on H2S and if this is able to be regulated it could have a huge impact in 
the industry  

 
Monthly Reports: 
The Director's Report, and Maintenance and Repairs Report, for the month of June, 2021 and Flow Data for May, 2021 was 
accepted on a motion offered by Mr. Sylvester and seconded by Mr. Still.  
All In Favor Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Absent  Chairman Rattner  Aye 
Mr. Cangiano  Absent  Mr. Romano  Aye 
Mr. Grogan  Aye  Mr. Schindelar  Aye 
Mr. McNeilly  Absent  Mr. Schwab  Aye 
Mrs. Michetti  Absent  Mr. Still  Aye 
Mr. Pucilowski  Aye  Mr. Sylvester  Aye 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 16

Comments: 

 Mr. Pucilowski apologized for not making the Engineering Meeting.  

 Mr. Rattner questioned the 25‐day estimation for Flow Data  
o Mr. Schilling advised that there was a malfunction with the Sierra Wireless equipment that transmits the 

data from the meter chambers.  Estimates have been obtained to replace the equipment, costing up to 
$21,000.00.  The new equipment will have the capability to record & store data, current equipment does 
not.  This has been reviewed with the Engineering Committee & will be presented to the Board likely to 
be paid out of Operations in 2022. 

o Mr. Rattner stated this should have been on one of the reports.  Mr. Schilling clarified it is on his report.  
o Mr. Pucilowski advised it is under the financial section of the Directors Report.  
o Mr. Rattner questioned if the Plant Data are real numbers, Mr. Schilling confirmed yes.  

 Mr. Schwab asked what type of response we are receiving for the position available of Operator Trainee. 
o Mr. Schilling advised that there is an employment crisis in the nation.  We have had two applicants, one 

that was over qualified & would not be a long‐term option, MSA would be a stepping stone for him.  The 
second is a strong candidate that he plans to offer the position to.  

 Mr. Pucilowski asked if the minutes from the last Engineering meeting were completed.  Mr. Schilling advised 
they are not yet available; the meeting was more of the same from the meeting prior.  

o Mr. Pucilowski asked if there was a report available with regard to the leaking roofs. 
o Mr. Wancho, PE advised that he has completed an evaluation and that he has two reports to combine, it 

was his understanding that this work was going to be pushed to 2022.  Mr. Wancho advised that he & 
Mr. Schilling spoke just before the meeting and he was made aware that this is now a more pressing 
issue, he will have the report completed within a few days.  

o Mr. Schilling advised that on 06.22.2021 we had our Safety Meeting and this issue was formally brought 
up by MSA staff, there is also a concern of voltage, there is water coming into buildings, recently at plant 
2 there have been some glitches and this is now a heightened concern. 

o Mr. Pucilowski suggested some patch work to get us through to 2022 
o Mr. Wancho, PE stated that the estimates for the roof repair & HVAC have been in the area of 

$1,000,000.00 – therefore the option currently would be some patch work.  
o Mr. Rattner stated that we also need to be concerned with the computer equipment & such because 

that could take us out completely.  

 Mr. Schilling advised that the sludge area was discussed by Engineering Committee, it was agreed with regard to 
odor management, with regard to data collection via H2S monitoring as well as wind direction & velocity 
monitoring & data logging.   

 Mr. Schilling made another point to be implemented in 2023, sludge haulers will be required to connect to an 
activated carbon system to mitigate odors.  

 Mr. Schilling also advised the sludge haulers will also have to be in and out by 6:00am. 

 Mr. Schilling further advised that he will be putting a non‐pneumatic mixing into the tank seeing as we can only 
run the blowers for a maximum of 6 hours per day as per our permit.  

 Mr. Schilling spoke about the Capital expenses through the PVSC Co‐Op prices which are set to expire 
07.30.2021, we are anticipating 6‐10% increase in prices.  Mr. Schilling plans to propose to procure the pumps as 
part of the NJ Ibank funding.  

 Mr. Dwyer, Esq. asked if any of the odor control measures discussed were included in the odor control 
management plan that was submitted.  

o Mr. Wancho, PE advised that the carbon was included. 
o Mr. Schilling advised that hours, equipment run, walking perimeter is included. 
o Mr. Schwab asked if the monitor discussed records data? 

 Mr. Schilling advised that this was the concern of Mr. Dwyer. 
 Mr. Schwab advised that the recorded data could harm us. 
 Mr. Schilling advised that data would be recorded manually by the Operator. 
 Mr. Schilling advised Sussex County & DEP have responded to odor complaints and while on site 

they have found nothing.  
 Mr. Dwyer, Esq. asked if there has been any indication when we may receive a response.  



 17

 Mr. Wancho, PE advised that its better to just wait for their response, it will likely come back 
with comments and we would have to go back and negotiate.  

 Mr. Schilling stated that we are required to perform a quarterly monitoring, he stated that we 
are here 24/7 it is normal to smell sewer as we are a sewerage authority if we were to smell 
anything else that would be a concern.  

 Mr. Wancho, PE advised that if we had a log available, we would have to release it if asked. 
 Mr. Schilling advised the data being collected is managed data. 
 Mr. Pucilowski provided an example of Clover Hill Plant burps all the time & when it burps you 

know there is a problem.  

 Mr. Schilling asked if it that facility is an SBR or MBR?  Mr. Pucilowski was unsure. 

 Mr. Rattner stated that a few years ago there were issues with vents, we were advised 
there were odors at around 5am, when stuff sits in pipes all night.   

 Mr. Schilling advised that is not an MSA asset.  

 Mr. Pucilowski advised that we could also use this meter at pump station 1 & 6 to detect 
any odors that there may be to prove that the aeration units are doing what they are 
supposed to.  

o Mr. Wancho, PE asked Mr. Dwyer, Esq. asked if we ended up in a dispute with DEP could we keep the 
data privileged & confidential if the data was sent to counsel.  
 Mr. Dwyer, Esq. advised that he does not think that it necessary. 
 Mr. Dwyer, Esq. also stated that he feels like the MSA has a bull’s eye on us and that eventually 

someone will hit the mark.  His concern is when our permit comes for renewal again.  
 Mr. Schilling advised that the permit hasn’t even been approved, this would be something we 

are doing on our own.  
 Mr. Schindelar advised that they are not requiring us to do this, we do not have to release this 

data however we would have it on hand should there be an issue then we have the data to 
support.  

 Mr. Rattner stated that he thinks we should also measure odor levels at East Brookwood. 
 Mr. Schilling stated he would just like to have data showing wind direction & H2S at our fence 

line.  
 Mr. Schilling suggested a straw vote.  Mr. Schindelar stated that if the Director opts to purchase 

the meter great, if not great.  
o Mr. Pucilowski asked if someone has started walking the perimeter? Mr. Schilling advised no; the permit 

has not been approved 
 
The Engineer’s Report for the month of June, 2021 was accepted on a motion offered by Mr. Still, seconded by Mr. Schindelar.   
All in Favor Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Absent  Chairman Rattner  Aye 
Mr. Cangiano  Absent   Mr. Romano  Aye 
Mr. Grogan  Aye  Mr. Schindelar  Aye 
Mr. McNeilly  Absent  Mr. Schwab  Aye 
Mrs. Michetti  Absent  Mr. Still  Aye 
Mr. Pucilowski  Aye  Mr. Sylvester  Aye 

 
Comments: 

 Mr. Wancho, PE stated work continues on Contracts 295 & 300 and that we are waiting on some equipment 
deliveries.  

o Mr. Schilling advised equipment is being delivered next week. 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 18

New Business: 
Resolution No. 21‐29 was offered on a motion by Mr. Pucilowski seconded by Mr. Schwab and the affirmative roll call vote of 
members present.  
Roll Call Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Absent  Chairman Rattner  Yes  
Mr. Cangiano  Absent  Mr. Romano  Yes  
Mr. Grogan  Yes  Mr. Schindelar  Yes 
Mr. McNeilly  Absent  Mr. Schwab  Yes 
Mrs. Michetti  Absent  Mr. Still  Yes 
Mr. Pucilowski  Yes  Mr. Sylvester  Yes 

*See attached resolution 
 
Comments: 

 None  
 
New Business: 

 No other comments 
 

Old Business: 
Comments: 

 Mr. Pucilowski requested that Mr. Schilling please send the minutes for 05.20.2021 Engineering Committee  
 
Closed Session: 
Entered Closed Session on a motion made by Mr. Rattner, seconded by Mr. Schindelar at 08:17 pm by an All in Favor Vote of 
members present. 
All in Favor Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Absent  Chairman Rattner  Aye 
Mr. Cangiano  Absent  Mr. Romano  Aye 
Mr. Grogan  Aye  Mr. Schindelar  Aye 
Mr. McNeilly  Absent  Mr. Schwab  Aye 
Mrs. Michetti  Absent  Mr. Still  Aye 
Mr. Pucilowski  Aye  Mr. Sylvester  Aye 

 
Open Session: 
Entered Closed Session on a motion made by Mr. Schwab, seconded by Mr. Romano at 08:19 pm by an All in Favor Vote of 
members present. 
All in Favor Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Absent  Chairman Rattner  Aye 
Mr. Cangiano  Absent  Mr. Romano  Aye 
Mr. Grogan  Aye  Mr. Schindelar  Aye 
Mr. McNeilly  Absent  Mr. Schwab  Aye 
Mrs. Michetti  Absent  Mr. Still  Aye 
Mr. Pucilowski  Aye  Mr. Sylvester  Aye 

 
Comments: 

 Mr. Schwab asked about the status of the 2020 Audit. 
o Mr. Schilling advised we still do not have.  
o Mr. Schwab requested we reach out to the Auditor  

 
 
 
 
 



 19

Adjournment: 
Motion made by Mr. Romano, seconded by Mr. Rattner and the All in Favor Vote of members present, Chairman Rattner 
adjourned the meeting at 08:21 pm.  
All in Favor Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Absent  Chairman Rattner  Aye 
Mr. Cangiano  Absent  Mr. Romano  Aye 
Mr. Grogan  Aye  Mr. Schindelar  Aye 
Mr. McNeilly  Absent  Mr. Schwab  Aye 
Mrs. Michetti  Absent  Mr. Still  Aye 
Mr. Pucilowski  Aye  Mr. Sylvester  Aye 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Respectfully Submitted: 
Jilliam Martucci ‐ Administrative Assistant 



 20

 
 



 21

 

 
 


